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UNITY RE, LTD
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present fairly the
financial position of Unity Reinsurance Company, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
as at 31 December 2014, the results of its operations, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:


Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently;



Presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;



Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs is insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
Group’s financial position and financial performance; and



Making an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:


Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls,
throughout the Group;



Maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group, and
which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group comply with IFRS;



Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with the Russian legislation and accounting
standards;



Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and



Preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authorized for issue
by the Management of Unity Reinsurance Company, Limited on 24 April 2015.
On behalf of the Management:

_____________________________
Svetlana Shekhovtsova
General Director

_________________________________
Alexey Solozhenkin
Chief Accountant

24 April 2015
Moscow

24 April 2015
Moscow
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To: Management and the Participant of Unity Reinsurance Company, Limited.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Unity Reinsurance
Company, Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014 and the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for 2014,
and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Russian
Federal Auditing Standards and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to express
an opinion on the fair presentation of these financial statements.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Group as at 31 December 2014, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for 2014 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

24 April 2015
Moscow, Russia

Svetlana Ploutalova, Partner
(Qualification certificate No. 01-000596 of 19 March 2012)
ZAO Deloitte & Touche CIS

AUDITED ENTITY: Unity Reinsurance Company, Limited

AUDIT FIRM: ZAO Deloitte & Touche CIS

State Registration Certificate No.1037800007288.

State Registration Certificate No.018.482 issued by Moscow
Registration Chamber on 30 October 1992.

Certificate of registration in the Unified State Register of Legal Entities as
a legal entity series 78 #000529060 dated 04 January 2003.
Address: 125047, 12, bldn. 1, Gashek str., Moscow city, Russia

Certificate of registration in the Unified State Register of Legal Entities
No. 1027700425444 issued by Interregional Inspectorate of the
Russian Ministry of Taxation No.39 for Moscow on 13 November 2002.
Certificate of membership in self-regulated organization
Non-Commercial Partnership Audit Chamber of Russia No. 3026
dated 20 May 2009; main registration number 10201117407.
Tel: +7 (495) 787 0600
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UNITY RE, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)

Notes
Gross premiums written
Written premiums ceded to reinsurers
Net premiums written

Year ended
31 December
2014

Year ended
31 December
2013

5
5

1 340 538
(386 353)
954 185

2 328 879
(547 264)
1 781 615

5
5

(97 925)
4 070

(138 578)
161 854

5

21 889
882 219

(72 417)
1 732 474

6
6

(974 598)
91 678
(882 920)

(821 021)
(556 770)
(1 377 791)

6 434
(45 888)
743
(39 412)

9 231
(46 275)
786
318 425

363 204
(44 275)
9 003
(139 717)
148 803

273 472
(4 792)
4 197
(243 663)
347 639

(32 193)

(46 959)

Net profit for the year

116 610

300 680

Total comprehensive income for the year

116 610

300 680

Cancelled premiums and change in provision for reinsurance
receivables arising from premiums
Change in gross provision for unearned premiums
Reinsurer's share of change in gross provision for unearned
premiums
Net earned premiums
Claims settled, net of reinsurance
Change in insurance contract provisions
Net claims incurred
Subrogations and recoveries
Acquisition costs
Net reinsurance commission income
Insurance activity result

7

Net investment income and interest expenses
Loss from disposal of financial instruments at amortized cost
Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Profit before tax

8

Income tax expense

10

9

On behalf of the Management:

_____________________________
Svetlana Shekhovtsova
General Director

_________________________________
Alexey Solozhenkin
Chief Accountant

24 April 2015
Moscow

24 April 2015
Moscow

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the
Notes to, and forming part of, the Consolidated Financial Statements set out on pages 8-61.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
Notes
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Placements with banks
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortized cost:
- loans issued
- financial instruments at amortized cost
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions
Current income tax
Deferred acquisition costs
Deferred tax asset
Investment property
Property and equipment
Other assets

670 164
937 898
609 453

250 054
1 197 837
847 400

14
14
16
19

1 221
678 393
406 808
599 527
14 783
76
264 580
2 089
5 700

86 686
517 888
344 763
253 971
32 678
9 747
2 609
8 126

4 190 692

3 551 759

2 021 056
280 911
64 428
387 052
11 922
41 478
2 806 847

1 793 137
153 581
23 171
127 635
2 097 524

700 000
619 492
64 353
1 383 845

700 000
700 946
53 289
1 454 235

4 190 692

3 551 759

Total assets

20

13
21
22

Equity
Charter capital
Retained earnings
Reserve fund
Total equity

31 December
2013

11
12
13,15

7
22
17
18
19

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Insurance contract provisions
Reinsurance payables
Current income tax liability
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Total liabilities

31 December
2014

23
23

Total liabilities and equity

On behalf of the Management:

_____________________________
Svetlana Shekhovtsova
General Director

_________________________________
Alexey Solozhenkin
Chief Accountant

24 April 2015
Moscow

24 April 2015
Moscow

The consolidated statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of,
the Consolidated Financial Statements set out on pages 8-61.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)

Notes
Insurance premiums received
Reinsurance premiums paid
Claims paid
Subrogations and recoveries
External claims handling expenses
Acquisition costs
Interest income
Other operating income
Administrative expenses

Year ended
31 December
2014

Year ended
31 December
2013

1 262 368
(322 550)
(963 962)
6 434
(10 635)
(50 180)
290 198
9 206
(151 576)

Net cash provided from operating activities before taxes paid

2 318 339
(601 993)
(809 065)
9 231
(11 956)
(42 049)
108 135
4 197
(246 393)

69 303

Income tax paid

728 446

(22 119)

Net cash provided from operating activities

(4 850)

47 184

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of financial instruments at amortized cost
Disposal of financial instruments at amortized cost
Acquisition of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Disposal of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Currency derivatives
Loans issued
Repayments of loans issued
Acquisition of investment property
Acquisition of other assets, net
Placements with banks

17

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

(467 668)
711 163
(1 605 496)
2 058 105
(369 002)
(1 684)
90 204
(264 580)
5 131
306 426

723 596

(164 259)
223 531
(1 066 993)
544 703
12 360
(136 800)
60 000
(70 000)

462 599

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

27

Cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash
equivalents

11

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

11

(597 458)

(187 000)

-

(187 000)

-

322 783

126 138

250 054

125 446

97 327
670 164

On behalf of the Management:

_____________________________
Svetlana Shekhovtsova
General Director

_________________________________
Alexey Solozhenkin
Chief Accountant

24 April 2015
Moscow

24 April 2015
Moscow

The consolidated statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of,
the Consolidated Financial Statements set out on pages 8-61.
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(1 530)
250 054

UNITY RE, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
Notes
Balance at 1 January 2013

Charter
capital

Reserve
fund

Retained
earnings

700 000

45 121

408 434

-

8 168

300 680
(8 168)

Net profit for the year
Increase in reserve fund
Balance at 31 December 2013

23

700 000

53 289

700 946

Net profit for the year
Dividends paid
Increase in reserve fund

27

-

11 064

116 610
(187 000)
(11 064)

Balance at 31 December 2014

23

700 000

64 353

619 492

Total
equity
1 153 555
300 680
1 454 235
116 610
(187 000)
1 383 845

On behalf of the Management:

_____________________________
Svetlana Shekhovtsova
General Director

_________________________________
Alexey Solozhenkin
Chief Accountant

24 April 2015
Moscow

24 April 2015
Moscow

The consolidated statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of,
the Consolidated Financial Statements set out on pages 8-61.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
1.

INTRODUCTION
Principal activities
Unity Reinsurance Company, Limited (“Unity Re, Ltd.” or the “Company”) was registered in 2004 on
the basis of previously acquired Limited Liability Company North-West Insurance Company, registered
in 1991. The registered office of the Company is located at: bld 1, 12 Gashek str, Moscow, 125047,
Russian Federation.
The Company provides insurance and reinsurance services in the Russian Federation and carries out
its operations under licenses No.С 1643 77 and No.П 1643 77 dated 4 July 2007. The Company’s
principal activity is reinsurance of insured risks.
The Company is 100% subsidiary of Astroway Limited (Cyprus). The ultimate beneficiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 were Sergey Sarkisov (50%) and Nikolay
Sarkisov (50%).
Subsidiaries
Country
of incorporation

Name
OOO Rusinvest
OOO Restroy

Russian Federation
Russian Federation

Principal activities
Real estate investments
Real estate investments

Ownership %
2014
2013
100%
100%

-

In 2014 the Company acquired 100% ownership in Rusinvest LLC and Restoy LLC. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries is the investments to real estate (Note 17). The acquisition meets the
conditions of and was accounted for as an asset acquisition and not a business combination. As at
31 December 2014 the Company is immediate parent company of its subsidiaries (together named
as the “Group”).

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).
Other basis of presentation criteria
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group is
a going concern and will continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except that financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and the investment property
were stated at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for assets.
The Group presents its statement of financial position based on liquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery or settlement within 12 months after the statement of financial position date (current) and
more than 12 months after the statement of financial position date (non-current) is presented in Note 24.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)
Functional currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Russian rubles. The Russian Ruble is the
Group’s functional and presentation currency.
All financial information has been rounded to the nearest thousand rubles.

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates and assumptions
When preparing these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the IFRSs, management
made a number of estimates and assumptions about the presentation of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Further information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies is described in the following Notes:


Provision for impairment of insurance receivables – Note 16;



Fair value of financial instruments – Note 15;



Fair value of investment property – Note 17;



Insurance contract provisions – Note 20;



Disposal of financial instruments at amortised cost – Note 14.

Changes in accounting policies and presentation
The Group has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any
consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2014.


Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements) (see (i));



Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation) (see (ii));



Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment
of Assets) (see (iii));



Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments to IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements) (see (iv));



IFRIC 21 Levies (see (v)).

The nature and the effect of the changes are explained below. These amendments do not have any
impact on its financial statements of the Group.
(i)

Investment entities

These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity under IFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires investment
entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Changes in accounting policies and presentation (continued)
(ii)

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities do not introduce new rules for offsetting financial assets and liabilities;
rather they clarify the offsetting criteria to address inconsistencies in their application. The Amendments
specify that an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off if that right is not contingent
on a future event; and enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties.
Due to the fact that the Group does not offset the financial instruments in accordance with IAS 32
“Financial Instruments: Presentation” and does not have the relative offsetting agreements,
the amendment does not have any impact to the consolidated financial statement of the Group.
(iii) Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
The amendments remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount when a CGU contains
goodwill or indefinite lived intangible assets but there has been no impairment.
(iv) Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative
designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria.
The Group considers these amendments do not have any impact to the consolidated financial
statement of the Group as the Group does not apply hedge accounting.
(v)

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching
a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the
specified minimum threshold is reached.
The accounting policies described below were applied consistently in all the reporting periods
presented in these consolidated financial statements.
(a)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

(i)

Classification of contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk
from the other party (the “policyholder”) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain future event (the “insured event”) adversely affects the policyholder. Insurance contracts
also include those contracts under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk from another
insurer (the “cedant”) by agreeing to compensate the cedant if a specified uncertain future event
(the “insured event”) adversely affects on it.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(а)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Insurance risk refers to risk different from a financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of potential future
change of one or more of the following factors: specified interest rate, security price, commodity
price, foreign currency exchange rate, price or rate index, credit rating or credit index or another
variable provided, in case of a non-financial variable, that this variable is not specific for the party to
the contract. Certain financial risks may also be transferred under insurance contracts. Insurance risk
is significant only provided that the Group becomes liable to pay significant insurance benefits upon
occurrence of an event specified in the insurance contract.
(ii)

Recognition and measurement of insurance contracts

Insurance premiums
Gross premiums written comprise premiums on contracts entered into during the year, irrespective of
whether they relate in whole or in part to a later accounting period. Premiums are disclosed gross of
commission payable to intermediaries. The earned part of premiums received is recognised as
revenue. Revenue from premiums is recognised on a straight-line basis throughout the period of the
insurance contract from the date of accepting the risk. Insurance premiums under contracts ceded to
reinsurers are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis throughout the period of the insurance
contract. The portion of ceded reinsurance premiums not recognised as an expense is treated as
a prepayment.
Policy cancellations
Policies are cancelled if there is objective evidence that the policyholder is not willing or able to pay
the insurance premium. Cancellations mainly affect those insurance contracts under which insurance
premiums are paid in installments throughout the period of the insurance contract. Cancellations are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements separately from gross written premium.
Unearned premium provision
The provision for unearned premiums is a portion of gross premiums written that will be earned in
subsequent reporting periods. The provision for unearned premiums is calculated separately for
each insurance agreement and pro rata to the period of the insurance agreement.
Claims
Net claims incurred include claims settled during the financial year and changes in the provision for
outstanding claims. Claims outstanding include provisions for the amount that the Group expects as
ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred but unpaid as at the reporting date, whether reported or
not, and provisions for related external claims handling expenses.
Claims outstanding are assessed through an analysis of individual reported claim and recording
a provision for claims incurred but not yet reported, taking into account an effect from internal and
external foreseeable events, such as changes of external claims handling expenses, changes in
legislation, historical experience and existing trends. Provisions for claims outstanding are not
discounted.
Provisions for claims calculated in prior reporting periods are adjusted in the consolidated financial
statements for the period in which the adjustments are made, and recorded as a separate line item in
the consolidated financial statements provided that such adjustments are material. The methods and
estimates used are reviewed on a regular basis.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(а)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

(ii)

Recognition and measurement of insurance contracts (continued)

Unexpired risk provision
Provision is recorded for unexpired risk arising from insurance contracts effective at the reporting
date, for which the expected value of claims and related expenses during an unexpired period of
insurance policies exceeds the unearned premiums provision for these insurance polices net of all
deferred acquisition costs. The provision for unexpired risks is calculated by reference to classes of
business managed jointly, after taking into account future investments return held to cover the
unearned premiums and unexpired claims provisions.
(iii) Reinsurance
In the normal course of business, the Group enters into reinsurance contracts to reduce the potential net
loss through partial transfer of the risk to reinsurers. Reinsurance arrangements do not discharge the
Group from its original direct obligations to policyholders.
Premiums ceded to reinsurers and reinsurers' share in insurance claims are recognized in profit and
loss and in the statement of financial position on a gross basis.
Reinsurance assets include balances due from reinsurers under ceded insurance liabilities. Amounts
recoverable from reinsurers are calculated on the basis of outstanding claims provision or settled
claims under reinsured contracts.
Premiums under inward reinsurance contracts are recognised as revenue in accordance with
the existing risk classification.
Amounts receivable on reinsurance operations are tested for impairment at each reporting date.
Such assets may become impaired as a result of an event that occurs after the initial recognition of
the assets which indicates that the Group may not collect the full amount due to it and provided that
such event had effect on the expected future cash flows from the reinsurer which may be reliably
estimated. Only receivables under contracts which transfer significant insurance risk to reinsurers
are recognised as reinsurance assets. Receivables under contracts which do not transfer significant
insurance risk to reinsurers are recognised as financial instruments.
(iv) Deferred acquisition costs
Acquisition costs, representing commissions, which vary with and are incurred in connection with
the acquisition or renewal of insurance policies.They are recorded as deferred acquisition costs and
amortised over the period in which the related written premiums are earned. Deferred acquisition
costs are calculated separately for each line of business and are tested for impairment for each line
of business at the date of entering into the insurance contract and at the end of each reporting period
on the basis of future estimates.
(v)

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date the Group performs an insurance liability adequacy test to determine that its
insurance liabilities (insurance contract provisions less deferred acquisition costs and related
intangible assets acquired as a result of business combinations or insurance portfolio transfer)
are adequate. When carrying out this test the Group uses the current best estimates of all future
contractual cash flows, and related expenses, as well as investment income from assets backing the
insurance contract provisions. If a shortfall is identified, the Group writes down related deferred
acquisition costs and intangible assets and records an additional provision if necessary. The deficiency
is recognised in profit or loss for the reporting period.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(а)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

(vi) Insurance and reinsurance receivables and payables
Amounts due to and from policyholders and reinsurers are financial instruments and are included in
insurance receivables and payables, and not in insurance contract provisions or reinsurance assets.
(b)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Group at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at
that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are stated
at historical cost, are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at transaction date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date when the fair value
is determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from currency translation are recognised
in profit or loss.
The exchange rates used by the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
as at year-end are as follows:
31 December
2014
RUB/USD
RUB/EUR

(c)

31 December
2013

56.2584
68.3427

32.7292
44.9699

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash and deposits on demand.
(d)

Financial instruments

(i)

Classification of financial instruments

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets or liabilities which are:


Acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing them in the near future;



Part of portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent and actual pattern of short-term profit taking;



Derivatives (except the case when derivative is defined as effective hedging instrument); or



Upon initial recognition, are designated as at fair value through profit or loss for the period.

All trading derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value), as well as options purchased,
are reported as assets. All trading derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair value), as well
as options issued, are reported as liabilities.
Financial instruments at amortised cost include financial assets held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows. The contractual terms of such
financial asset give rise on cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Classification of financial instruments (continued)

The Group uses a business model under which it holds bonds recognised as financial instruments at
amortised cost until maturity unless:


There are regulatory changes that have come into force or are imminently pending that affect the
Group’s ability to hold bonds generally or bonds recognised as financial instruments at amortised
cost in particular;



There is an issuer or a bond credit rating deterioration, typically evidenced by more than two
points downgrade as compared to the rating at acquisition of the bond recognized as financial
instruments at amortized cost;



There are international sanctions that have come into force or are imminently pending that could
affect the fair value of the instruments at amortized cost;



The Group takes a decision to exit, or reduce its exposure to, a particular bond market segment
or country;



Market yield-to-maturity on a bond falls below 5.5% per annum.

In any of the above circumstances, bonds may be disposed on the market provided further that sales
from the bond portfolio recognised as financial instruments at amortised cost shall not exceed 10%
of the portfolio in each financial year (other than disposals caused by the regulatory changes or
international sanctions or deterioration of the credit rating as described above).
Loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market, other than those that:


The Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term;



Upon initial recognition, are designated as at fair value through profit or loss; or



Upon initial recognition, are designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(ii)

Recognition of financial instruments

The Group recognizes financial assets and liabilities in its statement of financial position when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Regular way purchases of
financial assets are accounted for at the settlement date.
(iii) Measurement of financial instruments
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised initially at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset or a financial liability not classified at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets, including derivatives that are assets, are measured
at their fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale or other
disposal, except for:


Loans and receivables which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method;



Financial instruments at amortized cost which are measured using the effective interest rate
method; and



Investments in equity instruments which do not have quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value can not be measured reliably. Such instruments are recognized at cost.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Measurement of financial instruments
All financial liabilities, other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset carried at fair value does not qualify for
derecognition, are measured at amortized cost. Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest
rate method. Premiums and discounts, including transaction costs, are included in the carrying amount
of the related instrument and amortized based on the effective interest rate of the instrument.
(iv) Fair value measurement principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value
of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. When
there is no quoted price in an active market, the Group uses valuation techniques that maximize the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen
valuation technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in
these circumstances.
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price, i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, the financial instrument is initially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction
price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of
the instrument but no later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the
transaction is closed out.
If the asset or liability measured at fair value has the bid and ask price, assets and long positions are
measured at a bid price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an asking price.
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.
(v)

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold under sale and repurchase (“repo”) agreements are accounted for as secured financing
transactions, with the securities retained in the statement of financial position and the counterparty
liability included in amounts payable under repo transactions.
The difference between the sale and repurchase prices represents interest expense and is recognized
in profit or loss over the term of the repo agreement using the effective interest rate method.
Securities purchased under an agreement to resell (“reverse repo”) are recorded as accounts
receivable under reverse repurchase agreements. The difference between the purchase and resale
prices represents interest income and is recognized in profit or loss over the term of the reverse
repurchase agreement using the effective interest rate method.
If assets purchased under an agreement to resell are sold to third parties, the obligation to return
securities is recorded as a trading liability and measured at fair value.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d)

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi) Gains and losses on subsequent measurement
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial instrument classified as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
For financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or
loss when the financial asset or liability is derecognized or impaired, and through the amortization
process.
(vii) Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or when the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. Any rights or obligations created or retained in the transfer are recognized separately
as assets or liabilities. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished.
(e)

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(f)

Operating leases

The leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as expenses
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease and are charged to administrative expenses.
(g)

Investment property

Investment property is property held by the Group to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or
both and which is not occupied by the Group. Investment property includes assets under
construction for future use as investment property.
Investment property is initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs, and subsequently
remeasured at fair value updated to reflect market conditions at the end of the reporting period. Fair
value of investment property is the price that would be received from sale of the asset in an orderly
transaction, without deduction of any transaction costs. The best evidence of fair value is given by
current prices in an active market for similar property in the same location and condition.
In the absence of current prices in an active market, the Group considers information from a variety
of sources, including:


Current prices in an active market for properties of a different nature, condition or location,
adjusted to reflect those differences;



Recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and



Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, supported by
the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(g)

Investment property (continued)

Earned rental income is recorded in profit or loss for the year within other operating income. Gains
and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of investment property are recorded in profit or
loss for the year and presented separately.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
(h)

Property and equipment

(i)

Own assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items of property and equipment.
(ii)

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
individual assets. Depreciation commences on the date of acquisition of an asset. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:
Office and computer equipment
Vehicles

(i)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Financial assets at amortized cost

3-5 years
3 years

Financial assets at amortised cost comprise mainly financial instruments measured at amortised cost
(“Financial instruments at amortised cost”) and loans and receivables (“Loans and receivables”).
The Group reviews its financial instruments at amortised cost to assess impairment on a regular
basis. A financial instrument at amortized cost is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial instrument measured at amortized cost and that event (or events)
has (have) had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument at amortized
cost that can be reliably estimated.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial instrument at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial instrument at amortised cost and the present value of estimated future cash flows.
Contractual cash flows adjusted on the basis of relevant observable data that reflect current
economic conditions provide the basis for estimating expected cash flows.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

The Group reviews its loans and receivables to assess impairment on a regular basis. A loan is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the specified loan and
that event (or events) has (have) had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the loan that
can be reliably estimated.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a loan has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the loan and the present value of
estimated future cash flows including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral discounted
at the loan or receivable’s original effective interest rate. Contractual cash flows and historical loss
experience adjusted on the basis of relevant observable data that reflect current economic conditions
provide the basis for estimating expected cash flows.
(ii)

Non-financial assets

Other non-financial assets, excluding deferred taxes, are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications of impairment. The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is the greater of their fair
value less costs to sell and their value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does
not generate cash flows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if
the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. All impairment
losses in respect of non-financial assets are recognized in profit or loss and are only reversed if there is a
change in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Any impairment loss is to be reversed to
the extent that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount (net of any depreciation
and amortisation) that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in the
financial statements.
(j)

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
specific to the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle an obligation are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
(k)

Profit distribution

Distribution of profits to the Group’s participants is recognised in the reporting period in which it is
declared. The Group distributes profit to participants on the basis of financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Russian Accounting Standards (“RAS”).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(l)

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current income tax
Current income tax is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the profit and losses because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other reporting periods and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current income
tax liability is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred income taxes
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
(m) Interest income and expense and fee and commission income
Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss as they are accrued using the effective
interest rate for the asset/liability or a relevant floating interest rate. Interest income and expense
includes amortisation of any discount or premium or other differences between the initial carrying
amount of the financial instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate
basis.
Other fee and commission income is recognized when the corresponding service is provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(n)

Pension obligations and other employee benefits

The Group does not have pension plans or any other significant benefits for employees other than
plans of the state pension system of the Russian Federation. The state pension system sets current
pension funds contributions of the employer to be calculated as a percentage of current total payments
to staff. These expenses are recognized in the same reporting period as the payroll to which they
relate.
(o)

Early adoption of new standards

Effective 1 July 2010, the Group early adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments regarding classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. Related disclosures in connection with the early
adoption of the Standard were made in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010.
(p)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which are issued as at
31 December 2014 are not yet effective, and are not applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. From those, the standards, amendments and interpretations set out below can potentially
influence the activity of the Group. The Group plans to adopt these standards, amendments and
interpretations when they become effective.


IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;



IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;



Amendments to IAS 1 – Disclosure initiative project.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which
establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.
The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. Specifically, the standard
provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers.
The five steps in the model are as follows:


Identify the contract with the customer;



Identify the performance obligations in the contract;



Determine the transaction price;



Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts;



Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when or as a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added on topics such as the point in which
revenue is recognised, accounting for variable consideration, costs of fulfilling and obtaining a contract
and various related matters. New disclosures about revenue are also introduced.
The management of the Group anticipates that the application of IFRS 15 in the future may have an
impact on amount and timing of rental income recognition. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until a detailed review has been completed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in October
2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
In July 2014 IASB issued a finalised version of IFRS 9 mainly introducing impairment requirements
for financial assets and limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements for
financial assets. IFRS 9 is aiming at replacing IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.
The key requirements of IFRS 9 are:


Classification and measurement of financial assets. Financial assets are classified by
reference to the business model within which they are held and their contractual cash flow
characteristics. Specifically, debt instruments that are held within the business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost after initial recognition. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces a 'fair value through
other comprehensive income' category for debt instruments held within the business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial asset giving rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
which are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income after initial recognition.
All other debt and equity investments are measured at their fair values. In addition, under IFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.



Classification and measurement of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified in
a similar manner to under IAS 39, however there are differences in the requirements applying
to the measurement of an entity's own credit risk. IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.



Impairment. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an ‘expected credit loss’ model for the
measurement of the impairment of financial assets, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before a credit loss is recognized.



Hedge accounting. Introduces a new hedge accounting model that is designed to be more
closely aligned with how entities undertake risk management activities when hedging financial
and non-financial risk exposures. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments
that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items that
are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principal of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.



Derecognition. The requirements for the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities are
carried forward from IAS 39.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

The standard is effective from 1 January 2018 with early application permitted. Depending on the
chosen approach to applying IFRS 9, the transition can involve one or more than one date of initial
application for different requirements.
The management of the Group anticipates that the application of IFRS 9 in the future may have a
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.
The Group has not analysed the impact of these changes yet. The Group does not intend to adopt this
standard early.
Amendments to IAS 1 – Disclosure initiative project
The amendments clarify the principles of disclosing information. The definition of materiality is
expanded. It specifies the requirements of aggregation and disaggregation of data, clarifies that
materiality applies to all parts of financial statements and even in those cases when the standards
require specific disclosures materiality criteria do apply. The standard also provides more guidance
on presenting the information in the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive
income as well as on the order of the notes in the financial statements.
Various Improvements to IFRSs are dealt with on a standard-by-standard basis. All amendments resulting
in changes in presentation, recognition and measurement are effective on or after 1 January 2015.
The Group has not analyzed the likely effect of the improvements on its financial position and results of
its activity.

4.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK
(a)

Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating reinsurance risks

The Group’s reinsurance activity involves risks of cedant’s losses (losses of insurers and reinsurers)
that in turn are exposed to risks arising from policyholders. These risks may include risks of property
damage, third party liability, personal accidents, cargo, as well as other risks related to occurrence of
an insured event. By accepting risks the Group is exposed to uncertainties regarding payment of
insurance benefits and severity of damage under insurance contracts.
The Group is also exposed to the market risk as a result of insurance and investing activities.
The Group manages its insurance risks using established statistical techniques, reinsurance of risk
concentration, setting underwriting limits, establishing procedures of transactions approval, procedure
and monitoring of arising complexities. The main insurance risk is that the frequency and amount of
losses will exceed the expected ones. Due to the random nature of insured events, their actual number
and amount within any annual period may differ from the estimates that were made using statistical
techniques.
(i)

Underwriting strategy

The Group’s underwriting strategy is aimed to diversify the Group’s portfolio of insurance products in
such a manner that it always includes several categories of unrelated risks and each respective risk
category is comprised of numerous reinsurance contracts. The Group’s management believes that
this approach reduces the level of volatility of the financial result.
The underwriting strategy is presented in underwriting guidelines that define categories and
sub-categories of insurance types and territories where risks are accepted for reinsurance. The Group
implements the strategy by following rules of the underwriting guidelines which define the underwriting
rules for each type of insurance product in detail.
The Group’s management regularly monitors compliance with the underwriting guidelines.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(a)

Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating reinsurance risks (continued)

(ii)

Reinsurance strategy

The Group reinsures a part of risks accepted for reinsurance in order to control the risk of losses and
protect its equity. For the principal lines of business the Group enters into obligatory excess of loss
reinsurance contracts to reduce the Group's risk of net losses to RUB equivalent of USD 1 million.
Outward reinsurance is exposed to credit risk, and the recoverable amounts under reinsurance
contracts are recognized less the amounts relating either to insolvent counterparties, or uncollectible.
The Group regularly monitors the financial position of reinsurers and reviews reinsurance arrangements
on a periodic basis.
The Group does not enter into reinsurance stop loss treaties.
(b)

Reinsurance terms and conditions and nature of insurable risks

Reinsurance terms and conditions which have a significant effect on the amount, terms and uncertainty
of future cash flows related to reinsurance contracts are set out below. In addition, the information
below provides an assessment of the Group's insurance products and methods used to manage
risks related to those products.
(i)

Property reinsurance

Description of insurance products
Property reinsurance is the core business activity of the Group and comprises the major part of the
insurance portfolio in terms of earned insurance premium. The Group’s portfolio is based on significant
reinsurance risks related to commercial and industrial property and construction risks which are
transferred to the reinsurer by the cedant.
An insured event resulting in losses from buildings and inner property damage is of random nature
(as a result of fire, water leak, natural disaster), and its cause can be easily determined. The claim
will thus be notified promptly and can be settled without delays. The insured events resulting in
damages for industrial buildings and equipment and construction risks are very difficult to be
determined as insured events, and they relate to the category of insured events with long claims
handling. All reinsurance property contracts are protected by an obligatory excess of loss treaty.
Risk management
The principal types of risks relating to the insurance product comprise underwriting, competition and
loss assessment risks.
The underwriting risk presents a risk that the Group will not able to establish appropriate insurance
premiums for different types of property it reinsures.
The risk is managed mainly by controlling the terms according to which the risk is accepted to
reinsurance and insurance tariffs. The Group follows the established underwriting criteria to ensure
that the risk of losses is acceptable to the Group. The Group purchases non-proportional excess of
loss treaty retrocession covering all inward property business written, thus its ultimate net loss is limited
to USD 1 million rouble equivalent each and every loss, except those to which Annual Aggregate
Deductible (AAD) of USD 1 million rouble equivalent is applied. AAD of USD 1 million rouble
equivalents is applied in excess of retrocedant’s priority of USD 1 million rouble equivalent until it
becomes exhausted.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(b)

Reinsurance terms and conditions and nature of insurable risks (continued)

(ii)

Motor insurance

Description of insurance products
A significant part of the Group’s reinsurance risk portfolio comprises motor insurance, including
voluntary motor insurance (“Casco”). In accordance with Casco reinsurance contracts, the cedant
recovers losses related to the compensation to legal entities or individuals of loss and damage caused
to their vehicles, in accordance with direct insurance contracts.
Risk management
The period of submitting claims under motor insurance contracts is short, and the complexity of the
claims settlement is relatively low. In general, claims of insurance benefits in this type of insurance
create a moderate assessment risk. The Group monitors and reacts to changes in the frequency of
vehicle theft and accident claims by establishing relevant reinsurance tariffs.
The portfolio management strategy for this line of business involves tight control over loss ratios and
pricing policy.
(iii) Liability reinsurance
Description of insurance products
Liability reinsurance is coverage of standard risks, including reinsurance of vehicle owner’s liability,
general liability, individual and commercial liability.
Risk management
The principal types of risks relating to the insurance product comprise underwriting and loss
assessment risks.
The underwriting risk is a risk that the Group will not be able to establish appropriate reinsurance
premiums for different types of liability it reinsures. The risk is managed using a developed underwriting
policy with clear criteria and approaches to risk measurement that enables the Group to reduce the
risk and maintain current strong positions in the reinsurance market.
The risk is managed mainly by controlling conditions, tariffs and shares accepted for reinsurance.
The Group follows the established underwriting criteria to maintain the Group's losses at
an acceptable level.
(c)

Concentration of insurance risk

The key aspect of insurance risk facing the Group is the level of risk concentration provided the
occurrence of a certain event or events may have significant effect on the Group’s liabilities. Such
concentrations may arise from one insurance contract or several related contracts with similar risk
features and relate to the circumstances which may result in occurrence of significant liabilities. The
important aspect of concentration of reinsurance risk is that it may arise as a result of accumulated
risks within several contract categories or tranches of one contract. Concentration of insurance risk
does not constitute significant danger for the Group as the reinsurance Group has neither geographical
concentration, not concentration of risks in areas exposed to natural disasters.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(c)

Concentration of insurance risk (continued)

The principal approaches to the Group's risk management can be divided in two parts. First, risks are
managed by applying appropriate underwriting procedures. Underwriters can underwrite risks only
when expected income is comparable with the accepted risks. Second, risks are managed by
reinsurance. The Group purchases reinsurance coverage for various lines of business. The Group
regularly assesses costs and benefits related to the reinsurance program.
(d)

Risk reinsurance

The Group cedes insurance risk to limit exposure to underwriting losses under various reinsurance
contracts. These reinsurance contracts spread the risks between the reinsurer and ceding insurer
and reduce the amount of losses. The amount of each risk retained by the Group is subject to the
Group's measurement of specific risks, but the Group generally maintains obligatory protection of its
risk portfolio based on the excess of loss for each risk.
In accordance with reinsurance contracts, the reinsurer agrees to reimburse the ceded amount within
the contractual limits provided the Group paid the claim.
When selecting reinsurers, the Group considers their solvency which is assessed based on the
publicly available information and internal research.
(e)

Claims development

The Group provides information on claims development to reflect the insurance risk facing
the Group. The table below summarizes the paid claims grouped by years when insured events
occurred and the amount of provisions established for these claims. The upper part of the table
summarizes current estimates of cumulative claims and shows changes in the estimated claims at
subsequent reporting or accident year-ends. The estimate increases and decreases as claims are
paid and information on the frequency and severity of unpaid claims becomes available. The lower
part of the table reconciles the total provisions recognized in the statement of financial position and
estimates of cumulative claims.
This section also includes separate tables on claims development for the main categories of the
Group’s insurance activities.
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4.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(e)

Claims development (continued)

This section also includes separate tables on claims development for the main categories of the Group’s insurance activities.
Analysis of claims development (gross) – Total
2008

2009

Year of accident
2011
2012

2010

2013

2014

Total

Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of accident year
- one year later
- two years later
- three years later
- four years later
- five years later
- six years later
- seven years later

354 645
389 648
356 979
383 602
386 086
386 613
387 477
-

384 124
362 445
337 725
364 985
362 570
360 658
-

411 380
347 041
356 158
366 913
357 714
-

436 821
423 081
483 497
477 133
-

545 767
740 639
656 210
-

1 145 695
1 376 273
-

1 114 359
-

1 114 359
1 376 273
656 210
477 133
357 714
360 658
387 477
239 382

Estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments at the year end

387 477
387 454

360 658
358 161

357 714
343 907

477 133
439 530

656 210
590 998

1 376 273
941 274

1 114 359
212 800

4 969 208
3 513 508

23

2 496

13 807

37 603

65 212

434 999

901 559

1 455 700

Gross outstanding claims
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4.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(e)

Claims development (continued)

The table below provides an analysis of claim development by the most significant lines of insurance activity.
Analysis of claims development (gross) – Industrial property insurance
2008

2009

2010

Year of accident
2011
2012

2013

2014

Total

Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of accident year
- one year later
- two years later
- three years later
- four years later
- five years later
- six years later
- seven years later

138 287
159 608
130 001
150 279
153 871
152 973
152 517
-

193 052
197 108
191 673
197 883
195 979
193 992
-

197 696
172 532
213 704
222 396
206 447
-

270 329
257 556
328 593
310 901
-

309 658
456 505
359 350
-

891 183
1 056 955
-

891 567
-

891 567
1 056 955
359 350
310 901
206 447
193 992
152 517
110 592

Estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments at the year end

152 517
152 494

193 992
191 533

206 447
203 018

310 901
280 384

359 350
304 364

1 056 955
686 875

891 567
146 848

3 282 321
2 076 106

23

2 459

3 430

30 517

54 986

370 081

744 719

1 206 215

Gross outstanding claims
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4.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(e)

Claims development (continued)

Analysis of claims development (gross) – Motor insurance (Casco)
2008

2009

Year of accident
2011
2012

2010

2013

2014

Total

Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of accident year
- one year later
- two years later
- three years later
- four years later
- five years later
- six years later
- seven years later

177 000
132 602
130 270
130 125
130 465
130 466
130 469
-

110 308
89 477
86 750
87 310
87 160
87 160
-

68 259
72 901
68 405
68 659
68 689
-

96 441
85 166
90 127
90 124
-

151 033
179 158
191 149
-

167 564
213 550
-

130 919
-

130 919
213 550
191 149
90 124
68 689
87 160
130 469
69 235

Estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments at the year end

130 469
130 469

87 160
87 160

68 689
68 689

90 124
89 324

191 149
188 789

213 550
184 872

130 919
32 124

981 295
850 663

-

-

-

800

2 360

28 678

98 795

130 633

Gross outstanding claims
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4.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(e)

Claims development (continued)

Analysis of claims development (gross) – Liability insurance
2008
Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of accident year
- one year later
- two years later
- three years later
- four years later
- five years later
- six years later
- seven years later
Estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments at the year end
Gross outstanding claims

2009

Year of accident
2011
2012

2010

2013

2014

Total

10 942
2 756
1 333
1 499
1 499
1 499
1 499
-

15 602
22 519
17 569
8 410
8 410
8 410
-

8 984
6 629
8 033
8 105
10 811
-

5 348
4 259
3 172
5 946
-

5 370
19 748
21 849
-

7 794
6 122
-

6 276
-

6 276
6 122
21 849
5 946
10 811
8 410
1 499
1 792

1 499
1 499

8 410
8 410

10 811
10 777

5 946
5 418

21 849
19 716

6 122
1 229

6 276
52

62 704
48 893

-

-

34

528

2 133

4 893

6 224

13 811

29

UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
4.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(e)

Claims development (continued)

Analysis of claims development (gross) – Casualty insurance
2008

2009

Year of accident
2011
2012

2010

2013

2014

Total

Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of accident year
- one year later
- two years later
- three years later
- four years later
- five years later
- six years later
- seven years later

14 090
17 693
12 125
12 433
12 483
12 346
13 663
-

9 232
3 988
2 831
1 620
1 401
1 333
-

9 670
10 483
10 386
8 979
8 831
-

18 659
16 844
16 649
18 517
-

31 275
28 977
29 422
-

21 636
28 384
-

16 671
-

16 671
28 384
29 422
18 517
8 831
1 333
13 663
9 656

Estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments at the year end

13 663
13 663

1 333
1 333

8 831
8 831

18 517
18 454

29 422
27 891

28 384
21 194

16 671
2 143

126 476
103 164

-

-

-

63

1 531

7 190

14 528

23 312

Gross outstanding claims
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4.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(e)

Claims development (continued)

Analysis of claims development (gross) – Cargo insurance
2008

2009

Year of accident
2011
2012

2010

2013

2014

Total

Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of accident year
- one year later
- two years later
- three years later
- four years later
- five years later
- six years later
- seven years later

7 149
6 702
8 694
7 872
7 872
7 872
7 872
-

3 526
7 309
5 925
35 754
35 670
35 670
-

16 198
17 300
9 356
8 965
8 990
-

17 021
12 197
7 252
10 162
-

14 573
11 401
10 564
-

8 373
8 453
-

7 366
-

7 366
8 453
10 564
10 162
8 990
35 670
7 872
804

Estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments at the year end

7 872
7 872

35 670
35 670

8 990
8 990

10 162
6 645

10 564
10 071

8 453
6 145

7 366
1 945

89 882
78 142

-

-

-

3 517

493

2 308

5 421

11 740

Gross outstanding claims
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4.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK (CONTINUED)
(e)

Claims development (continued)

Analysis of claims development (gross) – Other
2008

2009

2010

Year of accident
2011
2012

2013

2014

Total

Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of accident year
- one year later
- two years later
- three years later
- four years later
- five years later
- six years later
- seven years later

7 177
70 287
74 556
81 394
79 896
81 456
81 456
-

52 404
42 044
32 977
34 009
33 951
34 094
-

110 573
67 196
46 273
49 810
53 946
-

29 023
47 059
37 703
41 484
-

33 858
44 850
43 876
-

49 145
62 808
-

61 562
-

61 562
62 808
43 876
41 484
53 946
34 094
81 456
47 303

Estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments at the year end

81 456
81 456

34 094
34 057

53 946
43 602

41 484
39 306

43 876
40 167

62 808
40 959

61 562
29 689

426 529
356 539

-

37

10 344

2 178

3 709

21 849

31 873

69 990

Gross outstanding claims
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5.

INSURANCE PREMIUMS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

Industrial
property
insurance

Motor
insurance
(Casco)

Liability
insurance

Casualty
insurance

Cargo
insurance
38 021

Other

Gross premiums written
Cancelled premiums and change in provision for
reinsurance receivables arising from premiums
Change in gross provision for unearned premiums

865 219

195 729

47 582

68 052

(61 491)
46 216

(7 360)
(21 760)

(7 636)
(3 758)

(1 122)
(5 972)

Gross earned premiums

849 944

166 609

36 188

60 958

36 646

96 338

(4 011)

(19 610)

(75)

(144)

(572)
(803)

125 935
(19 744)
(9 853)

Total
1 340 538
(97 925)
4 070
1 246 683

Written premiums ceded to reinsurers
Reinsurer's share of change in gross provision for
unearned premiums

(317 342)

-

(7 287)

(38 103)

19 294

-

(1 312)

4 126

Ceded earned premiums

(298 048)

-

(8 599)

(33 977)

(4 086)

(19 754)

(364 464)

27 589

26 981

32 560

76 584

882 219

Net earned premiums

Year ended 31 December 2013

551 896

Industrial
property
insurance

Gross premiums written
Cancelled premiums and change in provision for
reinsurance receivables arising from premiums
Change in gross provision for unearned premiums

1 772 552

Gross earned premiums

1 721 158

(87 745)
36 351

166 609

Motor
insurance
(Casco)

Liability
insurance

Casualty
insurance

Cargo
insurance

Other

Total

40 333

55 537

39 453

149 066

(16 749)
117 625

(1 379)
936

(819)
(3 034)

(2 381)
1 699

(29 505)
8 277

372 814

39 890

51 684

38 771

128 838

(2 803)

(27 237)

(547 264)

7 083

(72 417)
(619 681)

(371 721)

(114 687)

(4 573)

(26 243)

11 826

(96 298)

1 009

3 035

Ceded earned premiums

(359 895)

(210 985)

(3 564)

(23 208)

(1 875)

(20 154)

161 829

36 326

28 476

36 896

107 993

1 361 263

21 889

271 938

Written premiums ceded to reinsurers
Reinsurer’s share of change in gross provision for
unearned premiums

Net earned premiums

(386 353)

33

928

2 328 879
(138 578)
161 854
2 352 155

1 732 783

UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
6.

CLAIMS

Year ended 31 December 2014

Industrial
property
insurance

Motor
insurance
(Casco)

Liability
insurance

Casualty
insurance

Cargo
insurance

Other

Total

Claims settled
External claim handling expenses
Reinsurers’ share of claims settled

717 634
8 316
(8 030)

184 874
688
(36 346)

9 180
-

21 429
(2 558)

6 579
12
-

71 201
1 619
-

1 010 897
10 635
(46 934)

Claims settled, net of reinsurance

717 920

149 216

9 180

18 871

6 591

72 820

974 598

Change in provisions for incurred but not reported claims
Change in provisions for reported but not settled claims
Change in reinsurers' share of insurance contract
provisions

7 955
197 418

(1 594)
5 744

(790)
3 795

10 437
(5 172)

5 455
(2 490)

10 636
595

32 099
199 890

(357 196)

33 697

-

Change in insurance contract provisions,
net of reinsurance

(151 823)

37 847

3 005

566 097

187 063

12 185

Сlaims incurred, net of reinsurance

34

(168)

-

-

(323 667)

5 097

2 965

11 231

(91 678)

23 968

9 556

84 051

882 920
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6.

CLAIMS (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2013

Industrial
property
insurance

Motor
insurance
(Casco)

Liability
insurance

Casualty
insurance

Cargo
insurance

Other

Total

Claims settled
External claim handling expenses
Reinsurers’ share of claims settled

544 581
10 344
(12 616)

186 450
491
(16 216)

20 248
17
-

17 202
(2 361)

7 734
41
-

64 514
1 063
(471)

840 729
11 956
(31 664)

Claims settled, net of reinsurance

542 309

170 725

20 265

14 841

7 775

65 106

821 021

Change in provisions for incurred but not reported claims
Change in provisions for reported but not settled claims
Change in reinsurers' share of insurance contract
provisions

108 114
461 907

2 264
12 085

2 905
(2 003)

2 030
(1 441)

(6 734)
(1 218)

(1 320)
398

107 259
469 728

(26 766)

6 740

-

543 255

21 089

902

399

(7 952)

1 085 564

191 814

21 167

15 240

(177)

Change in insurance contract provisions,
net of reinsurance
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance

35

(190)

-

(1)

(923)
64 183

(20 217)

556 770
1 377 791

UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
7.

ACQUISITION COSTS
Year ended 31 December 2014
Change
in deferred
Acquisition
acquisition
costs for
Commissions
costs
the year
Industrial property insurance
Motor insurance (Casco)
Casualty insurance
Cargo insurance
Liability insurance
Other

23 802
10 485
939
2 193
379
13 126

(775)
(1 451)
2
243
(120)
(2 935)

23 027
9 034
941
2 436
259
10 191

50 924

(5 036)

45 888

Year ended 31 December 2013
Change
in deferred
Acquisition
acquisition
costs for
Commissions
costs
the year
Industrial property insurance
Motor insurance (Casco)
Casualty insurance
Liability insurance
Cargo insurance
Other

24 393
8 480
2 637
558
520
6 247

2 195
697
(76)
123
128
373

26 588
9 177
2 561
681
648
6 620

42 835

3 440

46 275

Analysis of movement in deferred acquisition costs
Year ended
31 December
2014
Deferred acquisition costs at 1 January
Change in deferred acquisition costs
Deferred acquisition costs at 31 December
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Year ended
31 December
2013

9 747
5 036

13 187
(3 440)

14 783

9 747
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8.

NET INVESTMENT INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE
Year ended
31 December
2014
Investment income
Interest income on financial assets at amortized cost:
Financial instruments at amortized cost
Placements with banks
Loans issued
Interest income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss
Other investment (expenses)/income
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Net foreign exchange gain/(losses)

Total investment income

9.

Year ended
31 December
2013

49 062
78 035
1 339

43 095
79 739
6 444

70 376
198 812

44 913
174 191

(786 621)
951 013
164 392

(14 984)
114 265
99 281

363 204

273 472

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Year ended
31 December
2014
Employee compensation
Social insurance taxes
Occupancy and security
Audit, consulting and information services
Bank charges
Transport and travel
Advertising
Communication
Other taxes
Stationery and generals
Amortization
Repairs
Other administrative expenses
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Year ended
31 December
2013

96 483
14 802
10 749
4 402
2 848
1 825
1 202
826
781
606
591
176
4 426

187 929
21 985
10 857
4 980
2 983
2 894
3 170
1 012
905
684
519
53
5 692

139 717

243 663

UNITY RE, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)
10. INCOME TAX
The Group measures and records its current income tax payable and its tax bases in its assets and
liabilities in accordance with the tax regulations of the Russian Federation, which may differ from IFRS.
The Group is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the non-tax deductibility of certain
expenses and a tax free regime for certain income.
Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.
Temporary differences as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 relate mostly to different methods/timing
of income and expense recognition as well as to temporary differences generated by tax – book
bases’ differences for certain assets.
The tax rate used for the reconciliations below is the corporate tax rate of 20% payable by corporate
entities in the Russian Federation on taxable profits in accordance with the effective tax legislation.
Year ended
31 December
2014
Current income tax expense
Income tax for the reporting year
Tax penalties of prior periods

Deferred income tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Year ended
31 December
2013

119 226
119 226

27 131
(28 673)
(1 542)

(87 033)
(87 033)

48 501
48 501

32 193

46 959

In 2013 the Group recognized the return of previously charged taxes and penalties amounted to
RUB 28 673 thousand based on decision of Supreme Arbitration Court of claim against tax inspection.
Calculation of the effective income tax rate:
Year ended
31 December
2014
Profit before income tax
Income tax at the applicable statutory tax rate
Tax penalties of prior periods
Non-deductible expenses

Effective income tax rate
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Year ended
31 December
2013

148 803

347 369

29 761
2 432

69 528
(28 673)
6 104

32 193

46 959

21.6%

13.5%
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11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December
2014
Current accounts with banks
Rated BBB- and higher
Rated BB+ and lower
Not rated
Cash on hand

31 December
2013

541 681
60 969
67 499

215 196
18 416
16 437

15

5

670 164

250 054

The credit quality ratings specified in the table above are based on rating scales developed by
international rating agencies (Standard&Poors, Moody’s, Fitch). Rating Baa3 (on rating scale by Moody’s)
is equal to BBB- and higher (on rating scale by Standard&Poors and Fitch). Rating Ba1 and lower
(on rating scale by Moody’s) equals to BB+ and lower (on rating scale by Standard&Poors and Fitch).
Concentration of cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 cash and cash equivalents are were due from the
following banks, which represent significant concentration:
31 December
2014
Alfa Bank
Absolut Bank
RESO Credit Bank

31 December
2013

541 669
58 164
64 699

215 181
18 412
16 437

664 532

250 030

12. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS
31 December
2014
Rated BBB- and higher
Rated BB+ and lower

31 December
2013

937 898
-

925 816
272 021

937 898

1 197 837

The credit quality ratings specified in the table above are based on rating scales developed by
international rating agencies (Standard&Poors, Moody’s, Fitch). Rating Baa3 (on rating scale by Moody’s)
is equal to BBB- and higher (on rating scale by Standard&Poors and Fitch). Rating Ba1 and lower
(on rating scale by Moody’s) equals to BB+ and lower (on rating scale by Standard&Poors and Fitch).
Concentration of placements with banks
31 December
2014
VTB
Rusfinance Bank
Alfa Bank
Credit Europe Bank
Absolut Bank
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31 December
2013

140 057
460 237
337 604
-

701 373
224 443
202 009
70 012

937 898

1 197 837
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
31 December
2014
Corporate bonds
Rated BBB- and higher
Rated BB+ and lower
Not rated
Total corporate bonds

272 555
269 370
65 966
607 891

13 735
212 861
441 008
667 604

-

175 195
175 195

1 562

4 601

609 453

847 400

Promissory notes
Rated BBB- and higher
Total promissory notes
Derivative financial instruments
Total financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

31 December
2013

The credit quality ratings specified in the table above are based on rating scales developed by
international rating agencies (Standard&Poors, Moody’s, Fitch). Rating Baa3 (on rating scale by
Moody’s) is equal to BBB- and higher (on rating scale by Standard&Poors and Fitch). Rating Ba1
and lower (on rating scale by Moody’s) equals to BB+ and lower (on rating scale by Standard&Poors
and Fitch).
The following table shows investments to corporate bonds without issue credit rating broken down by
issuer rating:
31 December
2014

31 December
2013

Corporate bonds
Rated BB+ and lower
Not rated

65 966
-

201 547
239 461

Total corporate bonds without issue credit rating

65 966

441 008

Derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013:
31 December 2014
Notional
Fair value
amount
Assets
Liabilities
Forward transactions
- buy RUB sell USD
- buy RUB sell EUR

582 960
60 142

961
601
1 562

31 December 2013
Notional
Fair value
amount
Assets
Liabilities

(387 052) 1 559 628
21 539

4 555
46

-

(387 052)

4 601

-

As at 31 December 2014 the Group concluded forward transactions for sale of foreign currency with
two big Russian banks (31 December 2013: with one big Russian bank).
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14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST
31 December
2014
Loans issued
Loans to legal entities (see Note 27)
Loans to individuals
Total loans issued

31 December
2013

1 221
1 221

86 578
108
86 686

Corporate bonds
Rated BBB- and higher
Rated BB+ and lower
Not rated
Total corporate bonds

621 641
56 752
678 393

124 519
334 768
58 601
517 888

Total financial assets at amortized cost

679 614

604 574

Loans issued are unsecured.
The credit quality ratings specified in the table above are based on rating scales developed by
international rating agencies (Standard&Poors, Moody’s, Fitch). Rating Baa3 (on rating scale by
Moody’s) is equal to BBB- and higher (on rating scale by Standard&Poors and Fitch). Rating Ba1
and lower (on rating scale by Moody’s) equals to BB+ and lower (on rating scale by Standard&Poors
and Fitch).
The following table shows investments to corporate bonds without issue credit rating broken down by
issuer rating:
31 December
2014

31 December
2013

Corporate bonds
Rated BB+ and lower

-

58 601

Total corporate bonds without issue credit rating

-

58 601

During the years, ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, pursuant to its business model
the Group was selling bonds from its portfolio of financial instruments at amortized cost. The carrying
value of financial instruments sold and circumstances under which they were disposed of are shown in
the table below:
Year ended
31 December
2014
Redemption
Credit rating deterioration of bond or an issuer
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Year ended
31 December
2013

108 868
646 570

235 703

755 438

235 703
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15. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY
The Group measures the fair value of financial instruments and investment property recognized in
the statement of financial position using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.


Level 1: Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.



Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. quoted prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from quoted prices). This category includes instruments valued using the
following: prices for similar instruments in active markets, prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are not considered to be active, or other valuation techniques, where all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market data.



Level 3: Valuation techniques not based on observable market data. This category includes
instruments measured with usage of inputs not based on observable market data, and such
unobservable inputs influence instrument’s valuation significantly. This category includes
instruments valued on the basis of quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between instruments.

Recurring fair value measurements
Recurring fair value measurements are those that the accounting standards require or permit in the
statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period:
The following table provides an analysis of assets and liabilities at fair value by the following categories:
instruments, the fair value of which was measured on the basis of quoted market prices, or instruments,
the fair value of which was measured with usage of valuation models using observable market data as
inputs, as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013:
Level 1
31 December 2014
Financial assets
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Non-financial assets
Investment property
Total recurring fair value assets

Level 2

Level 3

Total

607 891

1 562

-

609 453

-

-

264 580

264 580

607 891

1 562

264 580

874 033

Derivatives financial liabilities

-

(387 052)

-

(387 052)

Total recurring fair value
liabilities

-

(387 052)

-

(387 052)

31 December 2013
Financial assets
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

667 604

179 796

-

847 400

Total recurring fair value assets

667 604

179 796

-

847 400

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group had no financial instruments with
a fair value measured with valuation models using as inputs information other than market data.
The valuation techniques and description of inputs used in the fair value measurement of investment
property for level 3 measurements and related sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in those
inputs are disclosed in Note 17.
The estimated fair value of financial instruments at amortized cost is based on their quoted market
price at the reporting date without any deduction for the acquisition of financial instruments.
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15. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED)
The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is determined using discounted
cash flow models. Such models are based on future cash flows and discount rates for similar
instruments as at the reporting date.
The estimated fair value of financial assets and liabilities, except financial instruments at amortized
cost, does not differ significantly from their carrying value. The following table presents management's
estimates of the fair value of the financial assets at amortized cost.
31 December 2014
Fair value
Carrying value
Financial instruments at amortized
cost
Loans issued

586 431
1 221

678 393
1 221

31 December 2013
Fair value
Carrying value
497 852
86 686

517 888
86 686

The estimates of fair value are intended to approximate the price that would be received to sell
an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. However, given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment, the fair
value should not be interpreted as being realizable in an immediate sale of the assets or transfer of
liabilities.
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Group
determines fair values using other valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to
similar instruments for which market-observable prices exist. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation
techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other adjustments used
in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity
index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations. The objective of valuation techniques is to
arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial instrument at the reporting date
that would have been determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.
16. INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES
31 December
2014
Receivables arising out of reinsurance operations
Receivables arising out of direct reinsurance operations
Provision for impairment of receivables arising out of reinsurance
operations
Provision for impairment for other reinsurance receivables

31 December
2013

422 144
321
422 465

359 181
708
359 889

(15 657)
-

(14 178)
(948)

406 808

344 763

Analysis of the change in the provision for impairment of receivables arising out of reinsurance
operations:
31 December
2014

31 December
2013

Provision for impairment as at 1 January
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible
Provision created for the year
Recovery during the year

14 178
(1 072)
3 859
(1 308)

23 628
(9 760)
9 379
(9 069)

Provision for impairment as at 31December

15 657

14 178
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16. INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Analysis of the change in the provision for impairment for other reinsurance:
31 December
2014
Provision for impairment as at 1 January
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible
Recovery during the year

31 December
2013

948
(948)

Provision for impairment as at 31 December

3 915
(2 967)

-

948

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 the Group recognised a provision for receivables
arising out of reinsurance operations if there was objective evidence that the reinsurer would not be
able to pay its share in insurance premiums or claims. In particular, a 100% provision for impairment
is created for receivables from companies whose license has been terminated.
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 no objective evidence exists that the reinsurer
would not be able to pay its share in insurance premiums or claims. The provision composed of
cedent’s receivables only.
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
In September 2014 the Unity Re, Ltd. acquired 99.98% ownership in Rusinvest LLC for cash
consideration amounted to RUB 250 000 thousand. RusInvest LLC is in title of premises in Moscow
and earns rental income.
In September 2014 the Unity Re, Ltd. acquired 7.69% ownership in Restoy LLC for cash
consideration amounted to RUB 10 000 thousand. The remaining 92.31% shares were acquired by
Rusinvest LLC for cash consideration amounted to RUB 110 000 thousand. Restroy LLC is in title of
real estate under construction in Krasnodar.
The acquisition meets the conditions of and was accounted for as an asset acquisition and not
a business combination.
31 December
2014

31 December
2013

Investment properties at fair value at 1 January
Additions through acquisition of assets
Fair value gains less losses

264 580
-

-

Investment properties at fair value at 31 December

264 580

-

As at 31 December 2014 investment property was revaluated based on the results of internal
appraisal. The comparative approach and direct capitalization approach/ discounted cash flows were
used for revaluation.
Income approach (discounted cash flows) was used for revaluation of building under construction.
The following key assumptions were used in the applying the income approach:


Gross income (proceeds from disposal of residential and commercial premises) was estimated
by using existing prices of flats, parking lots and offices;



Costs of construction were estimated according relevant prices and projections



A Discount Rate (Terminal Capitalization Rate) of 15% per annum was applied to estimate the
market value of the property.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED)
In the applying the direct capitalization approach for revaluation of the office premises the following
key assumptions were used:


Gross operating income was estimated using the market rental rates of USD 215 per square
metre per annum;



In order to estimate net operating income (NOI), gross income was adjusted for a vacancy rate
of 3%–5%, non-collectability rate of 1–3% from potential gross income and operational
expenses of 5%–12% out of market rental rates;



Discount rate of 16.1% was used to discount cash flows in the first 5 years of forecast;



A Terminal Capitalization rate (TCR) of 12% per annum was applied to estimate the market
value of the property.

No changes in fair value were recognized in 2014 year from the acquisition date.

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property and equipment for 2014:
Office and
computer
equipment

Vehicles

Total

At cost
1 January 2014
Additions
Disposals

488
-

2 890
-

3 378
-

31 December 2014

488

2 890

3 378

Depreciation
1 January 2014
Depreciation charge
Disposals

(326)
(112)
-

(443)
(408)
-

(769)
(520)
-

31 December 2014

(438)

(851)

(1 289)

Carrying value
As at 31 December 2014

50

2 039

2 089

Movements in property and equipment for 2013:
Office and
computer
equipment

Vehicles

Total

At cost
1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals

488
-

2 890
-

3 378
-

31 December 2013

488

2 890

3 378

Depreciation
1 January 2013
Depreciation charge
Disposals

(215)
(111)
-

(35)
(408)
-

(250)
(519)
-

31 December 2013

(326)

(443)

(769)

Carrying value
As at 31 December 2013

162
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19. OTHER ASSETS
31 December
2014
Social insurance and other taxes
Receivables from tenants
Advances paid for services
Other

31 December
2013

2 445
1 642
784
829

2 002
2 247
3 877

5 700

8 126

20. INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS
Gross
Unearned premium provision
Incurred but not reported claims
provision
Reported but not settled claims
provision
Total insurance contract
provisions

(a)

31 December 2014
Reinsurance

Net

Gross

31 December 2013
Reinsurance

Net

565 356

(193 064)

372 292

569 426

(171 175)

398 250

583 761

(69 265)

514 496

551 662

(66 683)

484 978

871 939

(337 198)

534 741

672 049

(16 113)

655 937

2 021 056

(599 527)

1 421 529

1 793 137

(253 971)

1 539 166

Analysis of movements in insurance contract provisions (gross reinsurance)
2014

2013

Balance as at 1 January

1 793 137

1 378 004

Gross premiums written (Note 5)
Cancelled premiums and change in provision for reinsurance receivables
arising from premiums (Note 5)
Gross earned premiums (Note 5)
Change in estimates and payments in respect of prior year claims
Provision for current year claims (Note 4)

1 340 538

2 328 879

(97 925)
(1 246 683)
(669 570)
901 559

(138 578)
(2 352 155)
(240 914)
817 901

2 021 056

1 793 137

Balance as at 31 December

(b)

Analysis of movements in provisions for unearned premiums (gross reinsurance)
2014

Balance as at 1 January
Gross premiums written (Note 5)
Cancelled premiums and change in provision for reinsurance receivables
arising from premiums (Note 5)
Gross earned premiums (Note 5)
Balance as at 31 December

569 426

731 280

1 340 538

2 328 879

(97 925)
(1 246 683)

(138 578)
(2 352 155)

565 356
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20. INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)
(c)

Analysis of movements in claims provisions (gross reinsurance)
2014

Incurred but not reported claims provision as at 1 January
Reported but not settled claims provision as at 1 January
Total claims provisions as at 1 January
Change in estimates and payments in respect of prior year claims (Note 4)
Provision for current year claims (Note 4)
Total claims provisions as at 31 December (Note 4)
Incurred but not reported claims provision as at 31 December
Reported but not settled claims provision as at 31 December

(d)

551 662
672 049
1 223 711
(669 570)
901 559

2013
444 403
202 321
646 724
(240 914)
817 901

1 455 700

1 223 711

583 761
871 939

551 662
672 049

Assumptions and sensitivities for insurance business

Process used to determine the assumptions
Assumptions used for estimation of insurance assets and liabilities are intended to result in provisions
which are sufficient to cover any liabilities arising out of insurance contracts so far as can reasonably
be foreseen at the moment of estimation.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing a provision for outstanding claims, it is likely that the
final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established.
Provision is made at the balance sheet date for the expected ultimate cost of settlement of all claims
incurred in respect of events up to that date, whether reported or not, together with related external
claims handling expenses, less amounts already paid.
The provision for claims is not discounted for the time value of money.
The sources of data used as inputs for assumptions are mainly determined by the Group with usage
of internal detailed studies which are carried out at least quarterly. The Group checks assumptions to
ensure they are consistent with observable market data and other published information.
Estimation of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) is generally subject to a greater degree of
uncertainty than estimation of claims already notified, where more information is available.
The Group can often identify incurred but not reported claims only some time after the occurrence of
insured event giving rise to the claim. Due to the short tail nature of the Group’s portfolio,
a significant amount of claims are settled within one year after the occurrence of the insured event
giving rise to the claim.
The cost of outstanding claims and the IBNR provisions are estimated using a range of statistical
methods. These methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred claims, average cost per
claim and ultimate claim amounts in each accident year based upon observed claim development of
earlier years and expected loss ratios.
The key statistical methods are the following:


Chain ladder methods, which use historical data to estimate the paid and incurred to date
proportions of the ultimate claim cost;



Expected loss ratio methods, which use the Group’s expectation of the loss ratio for a class of
business; and



Benchmarking methods, which use the experience of comparable, more mature, classes to
estimate the cost of claims.
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20. INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)
(d)

Assumptions and sensitivities for insurance business (continued)

The actually used method or combination of methods may vary for different types of insurance based
on observed historical claims development.
Large claims are generally assessed separately and calculated on a case by case basis or projected
separately in order to allow for the possible distorting effects on development and incidence of these
large claims.
IBNR provisions and provisions for outstanding claims are initially estimated cumulatively, and after
that individual calculation is made to estimate the size of reinsurance recoveries. The method uses
historical data, gross IBNR estimates and the terms and conditions of the reinsurance contracts to
estimate the carrying value the IBNR reinsurance asset.
Assumptions
The assumptions that have the strongest impact on estimation of insurance contract provisions are
the expected loss ratios for the most recent accident years. The expected loss ratio is the ratio of
expected claims to earned premiums. When the total amount of liabilities is determined, the projection
of future cash flows includes estimates of variables which may affect the amount of an individual claim
(e.g. frequency of claims, risks related to insurance contracts – harm to life as a result of an accident,
persistent effects, recovery time, period between the insured event date and the settlement date).
Sensitivity analysis
The management believes that due to short-tailed nature of the Group’s business, the performance
of the Group's insurance product portfolio are mainly sensitive to changes in expected loss ratios.
The Group regularly adjusts its reinsurance tariffs on the basis of the latest values of the specified
variables which reflect current trends.

21. OTHER LIABILITIES
31 December
2014
Unused vacation provision
Loans received
Employee compensation payables
Tenants’ deposits
Settlements with suppliers and contractors
Other taxes
Other
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31 December
2013

4 438
3 502
1 693
448
676
1 165
-

13 825
5 729
3 530
57
30

11 922

23 171
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22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. The deductible temporary differences do not expire
under current income tax legislation. The changes in temporary differences in 2014 and 2013 are as
follows:
31 December 2014

Assets

Assets
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial instruments at amortized cost
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions
Other assets

Liabilities

Net position

1 690
3 131
547
467

(50 600)
-

1 690
(50 600)
3 131
547
467

Liabilities
Insurance contract provisions
Insurance and reinsurance payables
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss
Loss carried forward
Other liabilities

-

(71 517)
(2 082)

(71 517)
(2 082)

77 098
76
1 281

(1 493)

77 098
76
(212)

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

84 290

(125 692)

(41 402)

31 December 2013

Assets

Assets
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial instruments at amortized cost
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions
Liabilities
Insurance contract provisions
Other liabilities
Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

Liabilities

2 867
115 765

(4 186)
(7 135)
-

(4 186)
(7 135)
2 867
115 765

4 386

(239 332)
-

(239 332)
4 386

123 018

(250 653)

(127 635)

In 2014 the tax rate applicable for deferred income tax was 20% (2013: 20%).
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22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Movements in temporary differences in 2014
Balance as at
1 January
2014
Assets
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial instruments at amortized
cost
Insurance and reinsurance
receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract provisions
Other assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract provisions
Insurance and reinsurance payables
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Loss carried forward
Other liabilities
Net deferred tax liability

Recognized
in profit or loss

Acquired
through assets
acquisition

(4 186)

5 876

-

1 690

(7 135)

(43 465)

-

(50 600)

-

3 131
547
467

2 867

264

115 765
-

(115 218)
467

-

(239 332)
-

167 815
(2 082)

-

4 386
(127 635)

77 098
(617)
(3 105)
87 033

Balance as at
31 December
2014

(71 517)
(2 082)

693
(1 493)

77 098
76
(212)

(800)

(41 402)

Movements in temporary differences in 2013
Balance as at
1 January
2013
Assets
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial instruments at amortized cost
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions

Recognized
in profit or loss

Balance as at
31 December
2013

(8 857)
(3 861)
3 635
2 738

4 671
(3 274)
(768)
113 027

(4 186)
(7 135)
2 867
115 765

Liabilities
Insurance contract provisions
Other liabilities

(81 292)
8 503

(158 040)
(4 117)

(239 332)
4 386

Net deferred tax liability

(79 134)

(48 501)

(127 635)

23. CHARTER CAPITAL
According to Russian law, the sole participant of a limited liability Group is not entitled to withdraw
from participation in the Group.
As at 31 December 2014 the charter capital of the Group amounted to RUB 700 000 thousand
(2013: RUB 700 000 thousand).
Reserve fund
According to the Charter of the Company, the Group allots 15% of its annual net profits to other
reserves up to the amount of 10% from its charter capital based on Russian accounting standards.
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23. CHARTER CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Payments to Participant
31 December
2014
Dividends payable at 1 January
Dividends declared during the year
Dividends paid during the year

31 December
2013

187 000
(187 000)

Dividends payable at 31 December

-

-

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management is fundamental to the insurance business and is an essential element of the
Group’s operations. The major financial risks faced by the Group are market risk, including currency
risk, fair value interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
(a)

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group’s risk management policies aim to identify, analyze and manage the risks faced by
the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to continuously monitor risk levels and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions, products and services offered and emerging best practice.
The Board of Directors is responsible overall for the oversight of the risk management framework.
Management of the Group is responsible to manage key risks, design and implement risk
management policies and control procedures as well as approving major transactions.
Both external and internal risk factors are identified and managed throughout the Group’s
organizational structure. Particular attention is given to developing risk maps that are used to identify
the full range of risk factors and serve as a basis for determining the level of assurance over the current
risk mitigation procedures.
Russian legislation, including Law No. 4015-1 of 27 November 1992 “On Organization of Insurance
in the Russian Federation” sets out requirements to professional qualification, business reputation as
well as other requirements to members of the Board, of Directors, Management Board, Head of the
internal audit function and other key management personnel. All members of the Group's governing
and managing bodies are in compliance with the above mentioned requirements.
Management believes the Group is in compliance with the legislative requirements to internal
controls including the requirements to the internal audit function, and the Group's internal control
system is appropriate for the size, nature and complexity of the Group's operations.
(b)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity financial
instruments, which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level
of volatility of market prices.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, whilst optimizing the return on risk.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(c)

Interest rate risk

The following table provides information on interest-bearing assets of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013 and respective average effective interest rates as at that date. These
interest rates are the yields to maturity of these assets and liabilities.

31 December
2014

2014
Average
effective
interest rate

31 December
2013

2013
Average
effective
interest rate

Interest-bearing assets:
Placements with banks
- RUB
- USD

600 294
337 604

13.72%
2.90%

496 464
701 373

9.40%
5.35%

Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
- RUB
- USD

540 791
67 100

9.52%
6.37%

667 604
175 195

5.81%
4,20%

1 221
-

6.00%
-

108
86 578

6.00%
7.00%

678 393

9.92%

517 888

8.16%

Loans issued
- RUB
- USD
Financial instruments at
amortized cost
- USD

Interest rate risk is the risk that movements in interest rates will affect the Group’s income or the
value of its portfolios of financial instruments.
Interest rate risk arises when the actual or forecast assets of a given maturity period are either
greater or less than the actual or forecast liabilities in that maturity period.
An analysis of sensitivity of the Group’s projected profit before tax and equity to interest rate
reprising risk based on a simplified scenario of a 100 basis point (bp) symmetrical fall or rise in all
yield curves and positions of interest-bearing assets and liabilities existing as at 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013 is as follows:
31 December 2014
31 December 2013
Impact on profit
Impact on profit
before tax
Impact on equity
before tax
Impact on equity
100 bp parallel increase
100 bp parallel decrease

4 619
(4 619)

3 695
(3 695)

3 461
(3 461)

2 769
(2 769)

An analysis of sensitivity of the Group’s projected profit before tax for the year and equity to changes
in fair value of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss for the period due to changes
in the interest rates based on positions existing as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013
and a simplified scenario of a 100 bp symmetrical fall or rise in all yield curves is as follows:
31 December 2014
Impact on profit
Impact on
before tax
equity
100 bp parallel increase
100 bp parallel decrease

(14 831)
15 782
52

(11 865)
12 626

31 December 2013
Impact on profit
Impact on
before tax
equity
(6 620)
7 114

(5 296)
5 691
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d)

Currency risk

The Group has assets and liabilities denominated in several foreign currencies. Currency risk arises
when the actual or forecasted assets in a foreign currency are either greater or less than
the actual or forecast liabilities in that currency.
The currency structure of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014 comprises:
Other
currencies

RUB

USD

597 667
600 294

69 207
337 604

2 434
-

856
-

670 164
937 898

542 353

67 100

-

-

609 453

1 221

-

-

-

1 221

-

678 393

-

-

678 393

173 318

158 134

30 274

45 082

406 808

238 264

163 385

-

4 814

406 463

2 153 117

1 473 823

32 708

50 752

3 710 400

1 021 255

331 885

13 384

89 176

1 455 700

134 956

133 499

1 104

11 352

280 911

387 052

-

-

-

387 052

1 543 263

465 384

14 488

100 528

2 123 663

Net position on financial assets,
liabilities and insurance
contract provisions as at
31 December 2014

609 854

1 008 439

18 220

(49 776)

1 586 737

Off-balance sheet position

643 102

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Placements with banks
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial instruments at amortized
cost
- Loans issued
- Financial instruments at
amortized cost
Insurance and reinsurance
receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract provisions
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities and
insurance contract provisions
Insurance contract provisions
Insurance and reinsurance
payables
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Total financial liabilities and
insurance contract provisions

Net position
as at 31 December 2014

1 252 956
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EUR

Total at
31 December
2014

(582 960)

(60 142)

425 479

(41 922)

-

(49 776)

-

1 586 737
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d)

Currency risk (continued)

The currency structure of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013 comprises:

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Placements with banks
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial instruments at amortized
cost
- Loans issued
- Financial instruments at
amortized cost
Insurance and reinsurance
receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract provisions
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities and
insurance contract provisions
Insurance contract provisions
Insurance and reinsurance
payables
Total financial liabilities and
insurance contract provisions
Net position on financial assets,
liabilities and insurance
contract provisions as at
31 December 2013

Other
currencies

EUR

Total at
31 December
2013

RUB

USD

167 796
496 464

80 808
701 373

1 198
-

252
-

250 054
1 197 837

672 159

175 195

46

-

847 400

108

86 578

-

-

86 686

-

517 888

-

-

517 888

182 106

78 296

19 521

64 840

344 763

66 761

15 408

-

627

82 796

1 585 440

1 655 546

20 719

65 719

3 327 424

981 332

202 124

10 868

29 387

1 223 711

72 912

75 265

651

4 753

153 581

1 054 244

277 389

11 519

34 140

1 377 292

531 196

1 378 157

9 200

31 579

1 950 132

Off-balance sheet position

1 581 167

(1 559 628)

(21 539)

-

-

Net position
as at 31 December 2013

2 112 363

(181 471)

(12 339)

31 579

1 950 132

An analysis of sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax and equity to changes in the foreign currency
exchange rates based on positions existing as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 and a
simplified scenario of a 20% change in USD and EUR to Russian Ruble exchange rates is as follows:
31 December 2014
Impact on profit
Impact on
before tax
equity
25% appreciation of USD against
RUB
25% depreciation of USD against
RUB
25% appreciation of EUR against
RUB
25% depreciation of EUR against
RUB

31 December 2013
Impact on profit
Impact on
before tax
equity

106 370

85 096

(45 368)

(36 294)

(106 370)

(85 096)

45 368

36 294

(10 481)

(8 384)

(3 085)

(2 468)

10 481

8 384

3 085

2 468
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(e)

Credit risk

The Group’s portfolio of fixed-income securities is exposed to credit risk. This risk is defined as risk
of potential losses in value resulting from negative changes of the borrower's ability to settle the debt.
The Group’s objective is to earn competitive return by investing in diversified portfolio of securities.
The Group manages the risk by setting limits to borrowers’ credit rating.
The Group reinsures certain risks through reinsurance companies. When choosing the reinsurance
company, the Group is guided by the solvency and reliability criteria and, in a lesser degree,
diversification (risk distribution between counterparties).
The Group also has other accounts receivable exposed to credit risk. The most significant items of
the other accounts receivable exposed to credit risk are current accounts and placements with
banks, loans issued as well as insurance and reinsurance receivables. To minimize the risk on
placements with banks the Group mostly invests its funds in large Russian banks. To minimize the
risk that the cedants will not meet its obligations the Group monitors accounts receivable which are
close to maturity. If the debt is not settled in due time, the reinsurance contract is cancelled.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below. The impact of possible
netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure is not significant.
31 December
2014
Cash and cash equivalents
Placements with banks
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortized cost:
- Loans issued
- Financial instruments at amortized cost
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions

(f)

31 December
2013

670 149
937 898
609 453

250 049
1 197 837
847 400

1 221
678 393
406 808
337 198

86 686
517 888
344 763
16 112

3 641 120

3 260 740

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its obligations.
Liquidity risk exists when the maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The matching and/or
controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to
the management of financial institutions, including the Group. It is unusual for financial institutions
ever to be completely matched since business transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different
types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses.
The Group maintains the necessary liquidity position with the objective of ensuring that funds will be
available at all times to honor all cash flow obligations as they become due. The Group’s liquidity policy
is reviewed and approved by thе management.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(f)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below shows the Group's financial assets and liabilities at 31 December 2014 and 2013 by
their remaining contractual maturity. The undiscounted cash flows on the Group's financial liabilities
on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity do not differ from the analysis provided
below.
Less than
1 year
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Placements with banks
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial instruments at amortized
cost
- Loans issued
- Financial instruments at amortized
cost
Insurance and reinsurance
receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract provisions

1 year to
5 years

Total at
31 December
2014

More than
5 years

670 164
477 608

460 290

-

670 164
937 898

609 453

-

-

609 453

-

1 221

-

1 221

-

558 528

119 865

678 393

406 808

-

-

406 808

406 463

-

-

406 463

Total financial assets

2 570 496

1 020 039

119 865

3 710 400

Financial liabilities and insurance
contract provisions
Insurance contract provisions
Insurance and reinsurance payables
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

1 208 322
280 911

247 236
-

142
-

1 455 700
280 911

387 052

-

-

387 052

1 876 285

247 236

142

2 123 663

688 597

772 803

119 723

1 581 123

Total financial liabilities and
insurance contract provisions
Net position
as at 31 December 2014
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(f)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Less than
1 year

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Placements with banks
Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial instruments at amortized
cost
- Loans issued
- Financial instruments at amortized
cost
Insurance and reinsurance
receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract provisions
Total financial assets

1 year to
5 years

Total at
31 December
2013

More than
5 years

250 054
1 197 837

-

-

250 054
1 197 837

847 400

-

-

847 400

86 686

-

-

86 686

97 661

420 227

-

517 888

344 763

-

-

344 763

82 796

-

-

82 796

3 071 943

255 481

-

3 327 424

Financial liabilities and insurance
contract provisions
Insurance contract provisions
Insurance and reinsurance payables
Total financial liabilities and
insurance contract provisions

926 436
153 581

296 649
-

626
-

1 223 711
153 581

1 080 017

296 649

626

1 377 292

Net position
as at 31 December 2013

1 991 926

(41 168)

(626)

1 950 132

25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Bank of Russia sets minimum capital requirements and controls compliance with these
requirements.
The Group defines as capital those items defined by statutory regulation as capital for financial
institutions.
The Group has established the following capital management objectives:


To comply with the capital requirements set by the legislation of the Russian Federation and
established by an insurance regulator; and



To ensure that the Group continues as a going concern.
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25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The Group is obligated to comply with the following capital regulatory requirements (based on the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the legislation of the Russian Federation):


Excess of net assets over the share capital (in accordance with Federal Law No. 14-FZ of
8 February 1998 “On Limited Liability Companies”);



Maintaining the ratio of capital to premiums (“capital adequacy ratio”) above the prescribed
minimum level;



Compliance with requirements to the structure and composition of assets eligible to cover
insurers’ own funds (in accordance with Order of the RF Ministry of Finance No. 101n of
02 July 2013 “On Approval of Requirements for the Structure and Composition of Assets
Eligible to Cover Insurers’ Own Funds”);



Compliance of a minimum share capital amount with the requirements of Law No. 4015-1 of
27 November 1992 “On Organization of Insurance in the Russian Federation”. Under the
current legislation requirements, the minimum share capital of insurance companies carrying
out insurance and reinsurance operations is RUB 480 000 thousand.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group was in compliance with all the capital
requirements stated above.

26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(a)

Economic environment

Emerging markets, including Russian Federation, are subject to economic, political, social, legal, and
legislative risks which differ from the risks affecting more developed markets. Laws and regulations
affecting businesses in Russian Federation may change rapidly and may be subject to arbitrary
interpretations. The future economic direction of Russian Federation is largely dependent upon fiscal
and monetary measures undertaken by the government, together with legal, regulatory, and political
developments.
Because Russian Federation produces and exports large volumes of oil and gas, the Russian
economy is particularly sensitive to the price of oil and gas on the world market, which decreased
significantly during 2014. Management is unable to reliably estimate the effects of any further price
fluctuations on the Company’s financial position.]
Starting from March 2014, sanctions have been imposed in several packages by the U.S. and the E.U.
on certain Russian officials, businessmen and companies. International credit agencies downgraded
Russia’s long-term foreign currency sovereign rating with a negative outlook. In December 2014,
the Central Bank of the Russian Federation significantly increased its key interest rate, which resulted
in growth of interest rates on domestic borrowings. The exchange rate of the Russian Rouble
depreciated significantly. These developments may result in reduced access of the Russian
businesses to international capital and export markets, capital flight, further weakening of the Ruble
and other negative economic consequences.
The impact of further political and economic developments in Russia on future operations and
financial position of the Group is at this stage difficult to determine.
(b)

Insurance

The Group's principal activity is reinsurance of insured risks. The Group purchases obligatory protection
for its portfolios by classes of business from the leading international reinsurers having “A” or higher
reliability ratings for protection from negative impact on the Group's activities and financial position.
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26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
(c)

Litigations

From time to time and in the normal course of business, various types of claims against the Group
are received. On the basis of its own estimates and internal and external professional advice the
management of the Group believes that the litigations on the claims will not lead to significant losses
for which a provision has not been made in these consolidated financial statements yet.
(d)

Tax contingencies

The Group operates in the Russian Federation. In the normal course of business the management
should interpret and apply the existing legislative regulations. The taxation system in the Russian
Federation is relatively new and is characterized by frequent changes in regulatory documents, which
are often unclear, contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities.
Changing legislative regulations are often subject to varying interpretations by tax authorities entitled to
impose severe taxes and interest charges.
Tax years remain open to review by the tax authorities for three years. However, under certain
circumstances a tax year may remain open longer. During the stated period any changes in
interpretation or practice of legislative regulation application, even in case of the absence of changes in
the legislation of the Russian Federation, may be applied retrospectively. The circumstances described
above create tax risks in the Russian Federation that are more significant than in other countries.

27. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
(a)

Transactions with the directors and the senior management

The total remuneration of the senior management and the members of the Board of Directors
included in administrative expenses (see Note 9) is as follows:
Year ended
31 December
2014

Year ended
31 December
2013

Remuneration of the senior management
Payroll related taxes and contributions

46 261
5 218

138 421
14 573

Total remuneration

51 479

152 994

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 the balances on the settlement accounts and the
average interest rates on transactions with the senior management and the members of the Board of
Directors comprised:
31 December
2014
Other liabilities

(b)

508

31 December
2013
1 713

Transactions with Participant

In 2014 the Group paid to Participant the dividends amounted to RUB 187 000 thousand (2013: no
payments were made).
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27. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
(c)

Transactions with other related parties

Transactions with other related parties include transactions with companies related to the Participant
and the senior management of the Group.
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 the balances on transactions with other related
parties comprised:
31 December
2014
Statement of financial position
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortized cost:
- loans granted
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions
Liabilities
Insurance reserves
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Insurance and reinsurance payables

31 December
2013

64 699
-

16 437
244 063

2 760
51

86 578
14 282
-

224 237
(1 778)
60 679

452 990
6 864

The results of transactions with other related parties for 2014 and 2013 comprised:
Year ended
31 December
2014
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Gross premiums written
Written premiums ceded to reinsurers
Change in gross provision for unearned premiums
Reinsurer's share of change in gross provision for unearned premiums
Claims settled, net of reinsurance
Change in insurance contract provisions
Net investment income/(loss) and interest expenses
Administrative expenses

114 612
(5 561)
11 575
51
(283 428)
228 753
(277 205)
(9 993)

Year ended
31 December
2013

836 762
(7 059)
53 827
(8 282)
(184 502)
(429 501)
60 430
(10 865)

The Group made transactions with related parties on an arm’s length basis. Loans to related parties
are provided under market interest rate.
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28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In April 2014, the Company set up two subsidiaries Joint Stock Company “Investment Company
Unity RE” and Joint Stock Company “Unity RE Financial Markets” with the share capital of RUR
250.000 thousand each. The charter capitals of subsidiaries are unpaid at the date of issue of these
financial statements.

On behalf of the Management:

_____________________________
Svetlana Shekhovtsova
General Director

_________________________________
Alexey Solozhenkin
Chief Accountant

24 April 2015
Moscow

24 April 2015
Moscow
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